
REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

DATE: APRIL 24, 2013 

 

TO:   HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

  

FROM: GREG RAMIREZ, CITY MANAGER 

 

BY:  LOUIS CELAYA, DEPUTY CITY MANAGER  

 

SUBJECT:   GI INDUSTRIES/USA WASTE OF CA PERFORMANCE REVIEW 2007 – 

2013/FINAL OPTIONAL CONTRACT EXTENSION 
 

 
In May 2007, the City Council approved a residential franchise agreement with GI Industries and 
USA Waste of CA (Waste Management) for the provision of integrated residential waste 
management services.  The agreement was effective on July 1, 2007, and concludes on June 30, 
2013. Within the agreement, there is an automatic extension provision that extends the 
agreement from June 30, 2010, to June 30, 2013, provided a request to avoid the extension 
period is not delivered by either party.  Additionally, there is also a final optional extension 
provision that affords a final three-year term to the agreement.  The term would commence on 
July 1, 2013, and conclude on June 30, 2016.  In March of 2010, staff completed a performance 
review which identified Waste Management’s compliance with terms of the residential franchise 
agreement from 2007 to 2010, and the City Council approved an extension from 2010 to 2013. 
These provisions were placed into the agreement to permit the City the option to terminate the 
agreement, prior to 2013, should the City believe services being provided were not satisfactory 
or in compliance with the agreement.  Additionally, the agreement also provides the City the 
ability to conduct performance reviews of Waste Management.  Prior to the final optional 
extension, City staff felt it necessary to conduct another performance review that details Waste 
Management’s compliance through the entire term of the agreement.  This affords the City the 
ability to measure Waste Management services to date.   
 
In February 2013, the City’s solid waste consultant, Solid Waste Solutions, Inc. (SWS), notified 
Waste Management that the final performance review was being conducted and requested 
applicable information to review.  The requested information, detailed in the agreement, was 
comprised of the following areas: 1) compliance with agreement and applicable laws, 2) 
efficiency of collection operations, analysis of routes, schedules, and impact to agreement 
requirements, 3) staffing practices, including deployment of managerial and supervisory 
personnel, 4) financial management practices, including company billing and collection polices 
and practices, 5) employee and job safety training and management of hazardous waste 6) 
processes for receiving and resolving customer complaints, 7) procedure for maintenance, safety 
check, and replacement of equipment, 8) service performance standards review and 9) program 
updates/company service improvements.    
 



SWS concluded its review of Waste Management in March 2013, and their report is attached.  In 
summary, SWS and City staff finds Waste Management demonstrated a consistent compliance 
with the agreement through the term of the contract, and is a good service provider for residential 
solid waste collection.  In the area of compliance with the agreement and applicable laws, Waste 
Management has complied with all laws.  With regards to the efficiency of collection and 
compliance with the agreement, Waste Management has met all regulatory requirements of AB 
939, with diversion rates for the City above the state mandated required 50% (currently at 57%): 
 

Year Residential Diversion  

Rate (%) 

2007 55.20 % 

2008 57.04 % 

2009 56.19 % 

2010 56.65 % 

2011 56.92 % 

2012 57.46 % 

 
 
Additionally, Waste Management has demonstrated compliance with newly passed legislation 
AB 314, has implemented, extremely successfully, the household hazardous waste-electronic 
waste door-to-door collection program as called out in the agreement, submitted all required 
reports on time, and continually demonstrates it is an active participant in the community.   
 
In the areas of staffing practices, financial management practices, and employee and job safety 
training, Waste Management continues to have processes in place that affords them compliance 
with the agreement (i.e., adequate staff to address staff/community inquiries, financial system for 
billing and collecting on delinquent accounts, regular driver safety, equipment and hazardous 
material trainings).  Waste Management staff has consistently demonstrated its availability for 
inquires and is responsive to City staff needs, with same-day or next-day responses.  The 
majority of response time has been same day.  The company also demonstrates its commitment 
to safety, with frequent trainings of their staff, and there have been no major incidents involving 
damages to personal or public property since the inception of the contract. 
 
Procedures for Customer Complaints/Resolution 
 
Through the term of the contact, Waste Management has continued to demonstrate an efficient 
system in handling customer complaints and providing same-day resolutions.  Since the 
inception of the contract in July 2007, the City has received a total of 17 complaints over the 
seven-year period: 
 

 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

No. Complaints 6 5 4 0 1 1 

Resolved 6 5 4 n/a 1 1 

Complaints measured 
against Total 
Percentage of 
Residential Accounts 

0% 0% 0% n/a 0% 0% 



 
On the service provider side, Waste Management received and resolved the 1445 complaints: 
 

 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

No. 
Complaints 

292* 251* 190* 236* 259* 217* 

Resolved 292 251 190 236 259 217 

Complaints 
measured 
against Total 
Percentage of 
Residential 
Accounts 

5.5% 5.1% 3.6% 4.3% 4.2% 4.2% 

*Approximately 95% - 98% of the complaints comprised of missed pickup calls 

 

It should be noted that missed pickup occurrences are common in the solid refuse arena, and the 
low total percentage figure continues to demonstrate there is no warrant for alarm.  Also, the 
demonstrated decrease in customer complaints, from both the City and provider side, over the 
term of the contract, demonstrates Waste Management’s attention and dedication to 
improvement in the service it provides.   
 
With respect to the Service Performance Standards currently in the contract (i.e., failure to 
collect solid waste or recyclables properly set out for collection, customer responsiveness within 
the designated time period, timeliness of report submissions, etc.), Waste Management has not 
been found to be in violation of the standards since the inception of the contract.  
 
Rate Comparisons 
 
Through the term of the agreement, the rates Agoura Hills residents pay for solid waste services 
are much lower that neighboring jurisdictions.  This has been the result of agreement language 
and the escalation formula for rate adjustments (CPI index changes) established in the contract, 
and will continue to be the standard for escalation should a final optional extension be approved.  
 

City Rate for 64g Trash 64g Recycle 

and 96g Green waste 

Agoura Hills $23.53 

Moorpark $ 26.36 

Santa Paula $17.47 

Simi Valley $26.19 

Thousand Oaks $29.05 

Westlake Village $28.75 

 
 
Areas for Improvement 
 
While Waste Management is characterized as an above average service provider, there are areas 
of improvement that have been identified by the City’s Solid Waste Consultant: 
 



1. Improvement to the public education program to expand awareness on recycling and 
solid waste diversion in the residential and multi-family sectors  

2. Improvement in program implementation communication with City staff regarding 
upcoming program efforts that may assist the City in obtaining higher diversion rates 

3. Improvement in data transmission clarity to the City 
4. Continue efforts to decrease the frequency of missed pickups and complaints from 

residential and multifamily accounts  
 
Finally, while not a requirement in the contract, discussions with Waste Management’s General 
Manager have identified that Waste Management was successful in receiving permit approval to 
expand the life of the company-owned Simi Valley Landfill.  The site is now permitted to the 
year 2100.  Additionally, Waste Management continues its process to obtain required hauling 
permits for food waste, thereby allowing Waste Management the future ability to provide a 
limited residential food waste collection program.    Achieving success in these endeavors will 
lead to additional benefits to Agoura Hills residents, and demonstrates that Waste Management 
continues to think proactively in services for its existing clients. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Staff is requesting the City Council receive and file the 2007-2013 Waste Management 
Performance Report, and approve the final optional extension provision to June 30, 2016, as 
specified in the agreement. 
 
 
Attachment:  Solid Waste Solutions Inc.  – (Report) Performance Review for GI Industries/Waste Management  
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